




Board of Selectmen’s Minutes  January 9, 2023 
 

2 
 
 

 Chair Meier said that there is a public hearing application for a new “All Alcoholic Package Store 
License” by Sea State Foods, LLC, d/b/a Cataumet Fish, proposed to be located at 1360 Route 28A, 
Cataumet, MA  02534.   Chair Meier read aloud the hearing notice, opened the hearing and as the 
first order of business he entered into the record of the hearing a copy of the legal notice provided 
by the Town for this public hearing, and the green card showing the notification. He said as the 
second order of business he entered into this hearing a copy of the application and supporting 
materials provided by to the Town of Bourne under the cover letter dated December 19th, 2022.   

 
 Chair Meier then gave an overview of how the hearing would be run. He said they will start by 

allowing the applicant to make a presentation, then members of the Select Board (Board of 
Selectmen) will ask questions if they have any at that time, then they will open the floor to 
comments from the public.  Following public comment, the applicant may ask for further 
statements, the Select Board will then ask any remaining questions, then deliberate concerning the 
application. 

 
 Attorney Adam Barnowski of Ruberto, Israel & Weiner in Boston, said that he was there on behalf 

of the applicant, Sea State Foods, LLC.  He said that Patrick and Jenny Ross are the owners of the 
business, and that Patrick is the proposed Manager of record. He gave a background of the business 
and the location. He said that the fish market has been in operation for over 40 years. 

 
 Attorney Barnowski said that Patrick and Jenny, Bourne residents and oyster farmers that own 

Monks Cove Oysters and Sea State Food Truck, recently acquired the business.  They renovated 
the building and now offer a varied selection of foods.  They are seeking this license to be able to 
provide an array of beer and wine and spirits to customers seeking to pair specialty beverages with 
their seafood purchases.  

 
 After more details about Patrick and Jenny Ross, Attorney Barnowski talked about the elements of 

public need.  He said that there are no other package stores located in the immediate vicinity in the 
Village of Cataumet.  He said there are a cluster of liquor stores 4 miles to the north and to the 
south in North Falmouth. He said that the premise of what the Ross’ plan to do is different as it is 
to offer a complete specialty market experience for the customers.  He said that this license should 
not impact neighbors or other package stores.  

 
 Patrick Ross said that he grew up in Bourne and moved back to Bourne, after leaving for a few 

years, to buy a house and start the oyster farm.  He said that he had the opportunity to buy Cataumet 
Fish and is hoping to be able to expand to their offerings for their customers.  Jenny Ross said that 
local and responsible seafood is their focus and always will be and they would like to be able to 
expand on the products that they could offer their customers.  

 
 Judith Froman asked what the distance is to the liquor stores in North Falmouth.  Attorney 

Barnowski said that there is one liquor store about a mile to the south and there is a cluster about 4 
mile to the north. Jared MacDonald wanted to make sure that they were aware of what the hours 
are to be able to sell liquor that the State requires.   

 
 Chair Meier opened to floor to public comment and reminded all that each speaker will be limited 

to two minutes to ensure that everyone that wishes to speak will get that opportunity.   



Board of Selectmen’s Minutes  January 9, 2023 
 

3 
 
 

 
 Cataumet resident Langdon Allen said he has been a customer of Cataumet Fish for over 30 years, 

and he was delighted when the Ross’ bought Cataumet Fish.  Mr. Allen said that he is in support 
of this license. 

 
 Kristine Fisher, who previously owned Cataumet Fish with her husband Peter, said that they could 

not be happier with everything that the Ross’ have done with the market, and she does not see any 
reason to oppose them having a liquor license and she feels that it would be a great improvement 
for the Village of Cataumet and for Bourne.    

 
 Scott Froman from Sagamore Beach asked if Town Counsel has given any thoughts on this 

applicant based on previous decisions by this Board.  Attorney Bryan Bertram said that his 
communications on this applicant have been limited.  He said that he has reviewed the application 
and he has not discussed anything of substance with the Board.  Mr. Froman asked if he will have 
any discussion with the Board before any decisions are made by the Board.  Attorney Bertram said 
that if the Board decides here then the discussion will be anything that is done in open session. Mr. 
Froman said that he has no issue with Cataumet Fish, but he has concerns about previous decisions 
made by this Board.  

 
 There are many letters that were received regarding this application that are available for public 

inspection and will be posted on the website and some are in this evening’s packet and the others 
will be added to this evening’s packet as an addendum.  

 
 Chair Meier said there was an email that was sent to all the Board from Christine Gagne on Monday, 

January 9th at 4:27 that was written in support the retail liquor permit for Cataumet Fish.  Jared 
MacDonald said that there are a lot of letters in support of this license getting approved, and some 
are from other businesses and other liquor establishments in the Town of Bourne.  Mr. Froman 
asked how many letters were received from other liquor license holders and what their positions 
are.  There were letters from a restaurant that sells liquor that abuts Cataumet Fish and one from a 
liquor retail store, both in favor of granting this liquor license. Chair Meier said that he has not seen 
any that oppose this license.  

  
 Mary Jane Mastrangelo said that she feels that this license fits public need because Cataumet 

Village does not have a section 15 license.  She said that the previous applicant for a license was 
very close to other licenses and this area is very different from that area. She said that what is good 
about this application is that it is a niche concept, is compatible with the area, and provides a new 
service that is not available to the customers.  This will also provide an existing business with 
complementary revenue which is important for small businesses on the Cape to survive in the off 
season. 

 
 Ms. Mastrangelo said that she does have some concerns about this license and one being the 

management and experience.  She suggests that the application be contingent on the TIPS 
certification of management. She said there is limited parking there also and she feels that a site 
plan review or a special permit review may be needed.   

 



Board of Selectmen’s Minutes  January 9, 2023 
 

4 
 
 

 Ms. Mastrangelo also asked for an answer about the expansion of 540 square feet. Assistant Town 
Manager, Liz Hartsgrove said that the floor plan that was submitted, and the square footage, 
incorporates the storage area as well as the retail sale.  If they were to expand upon the retail sale 
footprint, it would require the applicant to go through an amendment of the description of the 
premise. Any changes would require a public hearing process, a legal ad, an abutter notification, 
and any potential permit reviews.  

 
 Regarding the hours of operation, Ms. Hartsgrove said that they can reduce the hours of selling 

liquor without a public hearing process, but they cannot expand on the hours.  Ms. Mastrangelo 
asked what if there is anything in the application that states this license is an accessory use and if 
there are any hours of operation in the application that will be put on the license.  Ms. Hartsgrove 
said that the hours are listed on the license, and it would be based upon what the application states.  
Attorney Barnowski said that the hours of operation were not included in the license because it is 
an ABCC application.  He said that he assumed that the Town would require certain hours that 
would be consistent with those that were mentioned previously, which are Monday through Friday, 
noon to 6 and 10 to 6 on Saturday, and for the summer the hours get expanded to 11-6 Monday 
through Friday, 10 to 6 on Saturdays, and 9 to 2 on Sundays.  

 
 There was some discussion about the 540 square feet, and Ms. Mastrangelo is concerned that the 

license should have the 20 x 27 feet as the retail sales location for alcoholic beverages.  Town 
Administrator Marlene McCollem said that the premise to be licensed based on this application is 
approximately 2,715 square feet including retail area, storage, and preparation area.   

 
 Ms. Mastrangelo asked that if the Board wanted to limit future expansion of the retail alcohol sales 

area, beyond the 540 square feet noted in the application, could they have it subject to review by 
the Board, and can they put it in the license.  She said that her concern is that someday the whole 
2,715 square feet could become all for the sale of alcohol.  There was more discussion about the 
space being licensed as food service, and/or retail space and about the possibility of a change of 
use in the future for the space. Jared MacDonald expressed the same concerns as Ms. Mastrangelo 
regarding the space turning into a liquor store with the sale of a little fish, sometime in the future.  

 
 Judith Froman said that she is conflicted in that they recently had another applicant for a liquor 

license.  She said that there are many things that she does like about this application.  She said that 
this application fits in with the goals of the Board and the Town. Scott Froman said that the 
description “unique need” keeps coming up and there is another market in Town that has basically 
the same premise and the applicant from last week also had a unique purpose in that the Town does 
not already have a store like theirs.   

 
 Melissa Ferretti said she loves the idea, and she has seen the letters of support, although she is torn 

due to denying the license last week.  She said she does have the same concerns as Ms. Mastrangelo 
as well.  Ms. Froman also wanted to bring up the fact that last week the Board discussed creating a 
policy for when opportunities arise in which there are liquor licenses available.  

 
 There was a question raised by a resident asking if this applicant decides to sell their liquor license, 

how would the sale work.  Ms. McCollem said it would have to get transferred through a public 



Board of Selectmen’s Minutes  January 9, 2023 
 

5 
 
 

hearing. Attorney Barnowski confirmed by saying that for any changes to the license, the applicant 
would need to go in front of the Board.   

 
 Chair Meier announced that it was time for deliberations by the Board.  Mr. MacDonald started by 

saying that the legality of this is a bit of a conundrum for the Board.  He said that changes in this 
business in the future have raised concerns for the Board.  He also said the uniqueness of this 
application is different from the uniqueness in that of the last applicant.  He said the last applicant 
was a box store and would be providing more of a business for those heading further down the 
Cape and possible taking away sales from the smaller businesses that are down Cape, and he feels 
that does not make Bourne a good neighbor to the rest of the Cape. He said that there is a vast 
difference in size and proximity to the next liquor store. He said that they are unique in that they 
are a small business and a part of the community and the premise of selling liquor to complement 
their fish is different rather than a box store selling large quantities. He said that he is in favor of 
issuing this license based on its uniqueness, community need and service and that the Board is 
offering a fair assessment in this application.  

 
 Judith Froman said that being in line with the conservative amount of growth that the Town has 

had, she thinks that having a smaller type of liquor store operation makes sense and it does serve 
an area that is under served. She said that acknowledging the direction that the Board and the Town 
has stated is being the way to go.  She also said she wants to hear what Town Counsel recommends.   

 

 Attorney Bertram said that everything that the Town Administrator and Assistant Town 
Administrator have said is accurate.  He said in terms of the analysis from this meeting, the Board 
seems to be focusing on the need of the location and how the Board weighs the various aspects of 
their analysis, it is up to the Board because they are presumed to have the best understating of the 
local needs. He said the Board is considering proper factors.   

 
 Mary Jane Mastrangelo said that she does support this application and she thinks that the 

application does support the public need.  She said the niche concept is unique and is compatible 
with the area and will provide a new service that is not currently available to customers.  She also 
thinks that the addition of retail alcohol sales will provide this business with complimentary 
revenue. She also said that the Board has received positive feedback from Cataumet residents and 
businesses, and others and this application fits the vision of the Town of Bourne and Cataumet.   

 
 Ms. Mastrangelo said she does want some contingencies and documentation of the TIPS premise 

certification of the manager.  She also wants review and approval of applicable site plan special 
permits necessary as determined by the Planning Board and the Building Inspector.  She said she 
wants it noted that any future expansion of the retail alcohol sales area be of the 20 x 27 square foot 
area noted in the floor plan of the application is subject to review and approval by the Select Board.  

 
 Melissa Ferretti said that what they have heard about this application this evening is that it speaks 

to community and the importance of supporting Bourne’s small businesses.  She said that small 
businesses have just gone through a very tough time with the pandemic.  She agrees with Ms. 
Mastrangelo’s thoughts on seeing that the conditions are met with the size of the space.  She also 
noted that there has not been opposition as there was with the last applicant. She said that she is in 
support of this application.   

 



Board of Selectmen’s Minutes  January 9, 2023 
 

6 
 
 

 Chair Meier said that this is a unique situation and the fact that Mrs. Fisher was here in support as 
being the former business owner speaks volumes.   

 
 Attorney Bertran said that the conditions of the license are TIPS Off-Premise Certification of the 

Manager, subject to whatever necessary approvals or permits related to the zoning, limiting the 
alcohol retail space to the space that is denoted in the plan and the allowable hours of 10 AM to 6 
PM.  He also said that considering the prior hearing, he suggests that they put some kind of 
condition on it like it being subject to the availability of a Section 15 license pending the outcome 
of any, and all appeals that may result from that proceeding.  Chair Meier asked the applicants if 
they had any objection to any of the conditions, and Attorney Barnowski said that they do not have 
any objections to the conditions.  

 
 Ms. McCollem reminded the Board and the applicants that this is for a yearly license and if the 

premises closes for more than 30 days, then they must go before the Board for their permission, 
and that there needs to be regular communication. 

  
Voted: Mary Jane Mastrangelo moved, and Jared MacDonald seconded to approve the application 
of Sea State Foods LLC for a new Annual All Alcohol Retail Package Store License under General 
Law Chapter 138, Section 15 for the reasons stated by the Selectmen during this hearing with 
allowable hours of 10 AM to 6 PM, conditioned on documentation of TIPS Off-Premise 
Certification of the Manager, review and approval of applicable site plan special permits as 
determined by the Planning Board and the Building Inspector, and compliance with Zoning, and 
that any future expansion of the retail alcohol sales area be on the 20 x 27 square foot area noted in 
the floor plan of application is subject to review and approval by the Select Board, and subject to 
the availability of a Section 15 License and further to authorize and direct Town Staff and Town 
Counsel to prepare correspondence memorializing the same for transmission to the applicant and 
to the Alcoholic Beverages Control Commission.  
Vote: Melissa Ferretti – yes, Mary Jane Mastrangelo – yes, Jared MacDonald – yes, Judith 

 Froman – yes, and Chair Meier – yes. 5-0-0.   
 

3.         Selectmen’s Business  
  

 None. 
 

4.         Town Administrator’s Report  
  

 None. 

5.  Minutes  
   

 None. 
6. Correspondence 
 
 Chair Meier said there were two pieces of correspondence in the packet which were both in 
 support.  
 
7. Committee Reports 
 



Board of Selectmen’s Minutes  January 9, 2023 
 

7 
 
 

 None. 
 
8.  Other Business 
 
 None.   
 
9.   Upcoming meetings:  Chair Meier said that there will be a meeting tomorrow, January 10th at the 
 same time.  
 
10. Adjourn 
 

Voted:  Mary Jane Mastrangelo moved, and Judith Froman seconded to adjourn. 
Vote: Melissa Ferretti – yes, Mary Jane Mastrangelo – yes, Jared MacDonald – yes, Judith 

 Froman – yes, and Chair Meier – yes. 5-0-0.   
 
This meeting of the Bourne Board of Selectmen was adjourned at 8:38 PM. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 

Kim Johnson, Recording Secretary 



































































































































-----Original Message----- 
From: Alison Ross [mailto:alisongoodross@gmail.com]  
Sent: Thursday, January 5, 2023 5:48 PM 
To: Peter Meier <PMeier@townofbourne.com>; Marlene McCollem <mmccollem@townofbourne.com> 
Subject: Cataumet Fish liquor license  
 
Hi, 
We wanted to say we would like Cataumet Fish to be approved for the liquor license they are 
requesting.  We go to the fish market often and it would be so great to be able to buy beer or wine to go 
with our fish dinner. Cataumet Fish is so convenient for us. Pat Ross (no relation to us) has really 
upgraded the fish market with a lot of other offerings including gift items.  We hope for a lot of people 
sake that you approve his request. 
Thank you, 
 
Alison & Doug Ross 
94 Cobblestone Lane 
North Falmouth 
---------- 
 
This email has been scanned for spam and viruses by Proofpoint Essentials. Visit the following link to 
report this email as spam: 
https://gdsprotect.cloud-protect.net/index01.php?mod_id&mod_option=gitem&mail_id72958894-
EnfVWmivven6&r_address=ccollem%40townofbourne.com&report= 
 
 



 
 

 

Selectmen’s Correspondence 

January 9, 2023 

A. Decision letter re Market Basket’s liquor licensing application from E. 
Hartsgrove. 

B. Response letter from Market Basket to Selectmen’s decision to deny at 
1/3/23 meeting.  



MB Spirits, LLC  
NEW G.L. c.138 §15 Quota License Hearing Decision Letter  Page | 1 

TOWN OF BOURNE 
Assistant Town Administrator 

24 Perry Avenue - Room 101 
Buzzards Bay, MA  02532 
www.townofbourne.com   
508.759.0600, Ext. 1355  

Elizabeth Hartsgrove, Assistant Town Administrator 
ehartsgrove@townofbourne.com 

January 5, 2023 

MB Spirits, LLC 
Attn: Jon D. Aieta, Esq. 
2 Factory Outlet Way 
Bourne, MA 02532 

SUBJECT: NEW G.L. C.138 §15 QUOTA LICENSE HEARING DECISION 

Dear Atty. Aieta: 

On December 5, 2022, the Town of Bourne Board of Selectmen as the Town’s Licensing Authority under 
General Laws chapter 138 opened, after due notice, a public hearing on an application from MB Spirits, 
LLC (“Applicant”) located at 2 Factory Outlet Way, Suite 2B for a new, annual all alcohol retail package 
store license under G.L. c.138 §15 (the “Application”). The Board continued the hearing to January 3, 
2023 and on that date voted to deny the Application. 

This correspondence provides notice to the Applicant and to the Alcoholic Beverages Control 
Commission (“ABCC”) of that decision pursuant to G.L. c.138, §23. 

The Licensing Authority made the following findings during deliberations, based upon careful 
consideration of all testimony and information received and entered into the record of the hearing: 

FINDINGS:  
1. The Applicant has provided a complete Application to the Town for the proposed license.
2. The Applicant requests a §15 license for use at the Premises, which is located in the village of

South Sagamore Beach next to the mid-Cape Highway, at 2 Factory Outlet Way.
3. South Sagamore Beach is a small area of the Town bounded to the north by the Cape Cod

Canal to the east by the Town of Sandwich, and otherwise by federal land.
4. There are 2 other §15 annual, all-alcohol retail package store licensees in close proximity to

the Premises, doing business as “One Stop Convenience Store” and “Ye Olde Spirit Shoppe.”
(See Locations Map, Attachment A).

5. A substantial amount of the testimony received during the public hearing was community
opposition to the Application and residents’ opinions that there is no public need for a new
§15 licensee at that particular location.

6. Testimony and information received during the public hearing did not establish that there is
a public need for another §15 license in this particular location, where two existing §15



MB Spirits, LLC  
NEW G.L. c.138 §15 Quota License Hearing Decision Letter  Page | 2 

licensees already exist in close proximity to the Premises, and which already serve the needs 
of residents in and around South Sagamore Beach.  

After deliberations, the Licensing Authority voted the following motion: 

MOTION: To move to deny the application of MB Spirits, LLC for a new, annual all-alcohol retail package 
store license under G.L.c.138, §15 for the reasons stated by the Selectmen during this hearing and, 
further, to authorize and direct Town staff and Town Counsel to prepare correspondence memorializing 
the same for transmission to the applicant and to the Alcoholic Beverage Control Commission. 

Motion by:  Mary Jane Mastrangelo;  Seconded by: Judith Froman 

Vote: Yea – 4;  Nay – 0;  Abstain – 1 (MacDonald) 

The applicant has the right to appeal this decision of the Licensing Authority to the Commonwealth of 
Massachusetts Alcoholic Beverages Control Commission within five (5) days of receipt of this decision. 

Should you have any questions please contact this office. 

Respectfully, 

Liz Hartsgrove 
Assistant Town Administrator  

Cc: Alcoholic Beverage Control Commission 
Board of Selectmen 

 Town Counsel 



MB Spirits, LLC    
NEW G.L. c.138 §15 Quota License Hearing Decision Letter  Page | 3 

 
ATTACHMENT A 

 

 






	01.09.23 Correspondence Combined.pdf
	6. 01.09.23 Correspondence
	6a. Decision Letter - MB Spirits Package Store License 010523
	6b. Letter from Market Basket re liquor licensing application




